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5. Classification

Ownership of Property
(Check as many boxes as apply.)

Category of Property
(Check only one box.)

Number of Resources within Property
(Do not include previously listed resources in the count)

Contributing Noncontributing
private
public - Local
public - State

X public - Federal X

building(s)
District
Site
Structure
Object

buildings
district
Site
structure
Object
Total

Name of related multiple property listing
(Enter "N/A” if property is not part of a multiple property listing)

Number of contributing resources previously 
listed in the National Register

Light Stations of the United States

6. Function or Use
Historic Functions
(Enter categories from instructions.) 

T ransportation____________

Water-related

Current Functions
(Enter categories from instructions.)

Transportation___________

Water-related

7. Description
Architectural Classification
(Enter categories from instructions.)

No Style

Materials
(Enter categories from instructions.)

foundation: Metal_______

walls: Metal

roof:

other:

Metal
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Narrative Description

Summary Paragraph

The Milwaukee Pierhead Light is a steel conical tower lighthouse established as a Federal aid to navigation in 
1906. It stands atop the offshore end of the north pier at the entry to Milwaukee Harbor from Lake Michigan. Located on 
the City of Milwaukee lakefront in Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, this property consists of one contributing resource, a 
lighthouse, and one noncontributing resource, the north pier. The lighthouse is approximately 42 feet tall and includes a 
slightly tapering conical tower made of steel plates arranged in eight courses. Each successive course from the base is 
lesser in diameter. The tower is topped with a decagonal (10-sided) lantern surrounded by a circular open-air gallery.
The light tower is painted red. The lantern and lantern gallery are painted black. The lantern is equipped with a modern 
automated optic having a focal plane 45 feet above water level. This beacon signals a red light that flashes once every 
four seconds and is visible for seven miles in clear weather. The north pier upon which the lighthouse stands is owned by 
the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. It is designated as a noncontributing resource because the existing pier is a 
reconstruction dating to the 1970s. The Milwaukee Pierhead Light is owned by the U.S. Coast Guard. It is identified as 
number 20670 on the Great Lakes regional light list. This lighthouse is not open to public visitation. It and the north pier 
are accessible from land by way of the southeast corner of the Henry W. Maier Festival Park on the Milwaukee lakefront.

Narrative Description

(see continuation sheets)
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Narrative Description 

Setting

This lighthouse property is situated on the north pier at the place where the Milwaukee River empties into Lake 
Michigan. The channel adjacent to the lighthouse is the entry to Milwaukee Harbor. This property is situated at the 
southeast corner of the City of Milwaukee’s Henry W. Maier Festival Park in Milwaukee County, Wisconsin. Milwaukee 
Pierhead Light sits atop the north pier’s eastern end, which extends into the waters of Lake Michigan’s Milwaukee Bay. 
The north pier is a Federal government navigation structure owned by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE). It is 
surrounded by the water except for its western end which meets the shore. The lighthouse was constructed in 1906 and 
has occupied the north pier’s offshore end since then. The north pier structure today differs from the early twentieth 
century north pier, having been reconstructed in the 1970s using steel sheet pile and concrete. The locality in the vicinity 
of the Milwaukee Pierhead Light has also undergone substantial changes since the property’s period of historical 
significance. During the first half of the twentieth century this setting was characterized by the north pier extending 
several hundreds of feet from the shoreline as it was then, the nearby Milwaukee waterfront was characterized by 
industrial facilities and transportation features associated with shipping and railroads, and the area north of the north pier 
consisted of submerged land beneath the waters of Lake Michigan. Today, the north pier extends a mere 150 feet from 
shore. Much of the area north of the pier is now a large expanse of late twentieth century man-made land resulting from 
bulkhead construction and filling. This made-land is presently occupied by the Henry W. Maier Festival Park, Marcus 
Amphitheater, and Lakeshore State Park. Another change in setting dating to the late twentieth century was construction 
of the Daniel Hoan Memorial Bridge. Built just 0.2 mile west of the Milwaukee Pierhead Light, the Hoan Bridge carries 
Interstate 794 across the Milwaukee River. It presently dominates the lighthouse’s setting when viewed looking west from 
Lake Michigan. The Milwaukee Pierhead Light’s eastward setting looking towards Lake Michigan remains essentially the 
same as during the property’s period of historical significance. There is an unobstructed view of the Milwaukee 
Breakwater Light (built in 1926, NRHP # 11000678), which is located approximately 0.7 mile to the east across the waters 
of Milwaukee Bay.

Contributing Resource: Lighthouse

The Milwaukee Pierhead Light property includes one contributing resource, a lighthouse built in 1906. It is owned 
by U.S. Coast Guard (USCG) and identified as number 20670 in the Great Lakes regional light list. This lighthouse is 
approximately 42 feet tall and includes four stories. It has a concrete slab foundation and a slightly tapering conical tower 
that supports a circular lantern gallery and decagonal (10-sided) lantern. The light tower is painted red. The lantern and 
lantern gallery are painted black. The lighthouse’s foundation is a 2-foot tall rectangular concrete slab approximately 18 
feet long on the sides. This slab sits atop the north pier’s concrete deck and is not original to the lighthouse. It dates to 
the north pier’s reconstruction during the 1970s.

The light tower is built of eight courses of curved steel plates that are 3/8-inch thick and approximately three feet 
tall. Each course is made with three adjoining curved plates fastened with rivets. The bottom course has the greatest 
diameter, approximately 12.5 feet. Each successive course has a slightly smaller diameter than the one below, giving the 
tower a slightly tapering profile. The tower’s entrance is on the western side. It is a rectangular doorway six feet tall by 30 
inches wide that is fitted with a metal door. The doorway’s threshold is eight inches above the lighthouse’s concrete slab 
foundation. A rectangular sign with the words “Caution USCG Electric Cable” is attached to the tower’s exterior on the 
eastern side. It informs viewers of an underwater power cable running eastward from the north pier to the offshore 
Milwaukee Breakwater Light. The light tower’s upper section is pierced with three circular, one-foot diameter port light 
openings, one each on the north, south and west sides. An upward-turned pipe elbow for a stove pipe smoke stack 
extends out from the tower above the port lights on the northwest side. It is non-functioning and its top is capped.
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The tower’s first story interior is approximately 10 feet in diameter. The circular floor is concrete with an opening 
that is presently covered. The ceiling is 9 feet, 8 inches above. A wall-mounted electrical panel is on the eastern side.
An original, curving cast iron stairway rises from the floor to a 32-inch wide by 50-inch long crescent-shaped opening in 
the ceiling. The stairway treads are bolted together and have a raised pattern of small diamond-shapes for traction.
There are no risers. Handrails made with 2-inch diameter metal pipe are attached on the stainway’s left and right sides. 
The second story room is approximately nine feet in diameter and has a circular 5-inch thick concrete floor. A circular 
drain pierces the floor. The ceiling is 8 feet, 3 inches above. An original, curving cast iron stairway rises from the floor to 
a crescent-shaped opening in the ceiling, providing access to the third story. It is built the same as the stairway between 
the first and second stories.

The third story is the lighthouse’s watch room. It is approximately eight feet in diameter and has a circular metal 
floor. The ceiling is 11 feet, 2 inches above. The surrounding interior wall has an 8-inch thick coating of concrete inside 
the steel outer wall. The wall includes 28-inch tall by 32-inch wide rectangular niches on the north, south, and west sides. 
Each niche is framed with wooden molding and includes a one-foot diameter circular window opening fitted with an 
original port light. A circular stove pipe opening pierces the upper wall on the watch room’s northwest side. It is covered 
with a metal plate. A metal double-rung ladder rises from the floor to a 24-inch by 32-inch rectangular opening in the 
ceiling that is fitted with a trap door. This ladder provides access to the lantern room.

The decagonal (10-sided) lantern sits centered atop the tower on a circular platform approximately ten feet in 
diameter that is made with steel plates. The open-air gallery surrounding the lantern is bounded by a circular guardrail 
made with flat metal bars supported by rectangular metal bar stanchions. The guardrail’s three horizontal tiers are tied 
together with supplemental flat metal bars oriented diagonally and vertically. A rectangular solar array is attached to the 
guardrail on the south side. It is used to recharge batteries that power the lighthouse’s beacon.

The lantern includes a 3-foot tall parapet wall made with ten cast iron plates supporting muliions that frame ten 
rectanguiar window openings that are 3 feet tall by 2 feet wide. Six window openings are glazed with glass panes. The 
four window openings on the lantern’s western side are filled with rectangular metal plates that are painted black on the 
front and back sides. The parapet’s western side is pierced with a metal door measuring 36 inches tall by 21 inches wide 
providing access to the lantern gallery. The lantern room floor is pierced with a trapdoor. A pedestal attached to the 
center of the floor supports a modern automated 300-millimeter acrylic optic having a focal plane 45 feet above water 
level. This optic signals a red light that flashes once every four seconds and is visible for seven miles in clear weather. 
The lantern’s roof springs from a soffit above the glazing. It is made with ten triangular plates that slope upward to a 
central vent opening capped with a 2-foot tall vent pipe topped with a vent ball. A lightning rod is attached atop the vent 
ball. The roof and vent are painted black.

Noncontributing Resource: North Pier

The property’s noncontributing resource is the north pier at the entry to Milwaukee Harbor. This is a Federal 
navigation structure owned and maintained by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USAGE). The north pier stands in 
water approximately 20 feet deep and is approximately 150 feet long by 25 feet wide. It extends eastward from shore into 
the Milwaukee Bay waters of Lake Michigan. Its vertical sides are made with steel sheet piles and the interior space 
within is filled with concrete. The pier’s deck is concrete and steel guardrails extend around the deck’s periphery.

The north pier was originally built under USAGE supervision in 1857 to stabilize a navigation channel excavated 
between Milwaukee harbor and Lake Michigan. A pier was also built to stabilize the channel’s southern side. This 
channel superseded the natural mouth of the Milwaukee River which was located to the south. Subsequent 
Congressional appropriations provided funds to the USAGE to maintain and improve these navigation structures. One 
such project in 1868 extended the north and south piers farther into the waters of Lake Michigan. A Federal aid to 
navigation designated the Milwaukee Pierhead Light was established on the north pier in 1872.
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The north pier was rebuilt using concrete during the early twentieth century during the Milwaukee Pierhead Light’s 
period of historical significance. A subsequent reconstruction project undertaken by the USAGE during the 1970s resulted 
in the north pier’s configuration as it exists today, which is substantially different from the pier’s earlier historical character. 
Because of this, the existing north pier is designated as a noncontributing resource.

Changes in Physical Appearance and Overall Integrity

The Milwaukee Pierhead Light today is very much the same as when it was built in 1906. Changes to its structure 
have been limited. One change has been the nature of the foundation underlying the lighthouse. It originally stood atop 
the north pier’s concrete deck as it existed in 1906. Today, the existing north pier is the result of reconstruction in the 
1970s and the lighthouse stands on a concrete slab foundation that sits atop the existing pier’s concrete deck. Another 
aspect that has changed is that the lighthouse’s day mark coloration was originally painted a light grey color with a black 
lantern. This was changed circa 1914 to a buff-colored tower and a black lantern. The day mark was finally changed to a 
red tower topped with a black lantern in the 1930s and retains that coloration today.

When the Milwaukee Pierhead Light was constructed in 1906, it was the front range light of a two-light range on 
the north pier. The rear range light was a taller skeletal tower supporting a beacon and was located several hundreds of 
feet towards the west along the north pier. A vessel approaching Milwaukee harbor from Lake Michigan sought to align 
itself with the front and rear range lights oriented vertically. The north pier at that time also included a keeper’s dwelling 
and a steam-powered fog signal house.

The Pierhead Light’s original 1906 lantern was cylindrical with helical mullions holding its glazing. It was 
equipped with a fourth order Fresnel lens that signaled a fixed red light visible for 13 miles. The lighthouse’s watch room 
was equipped with a stove connected to a stove pipe smokestack on the tower’s northwestern side.

In 1926, the Milwaukee Breakwater Light was built offshore approximately 0.7 mile east of the Pierhead Light.
This construction included the transfer of the Milwaukee Pierhead Light’s original cylindrical lantern and fourth order 
Fresnel lens to the new breakwater lighthouse. In their place, a decagonal lantern and fifth order Fresnel lens were 
installed atop the Milwaukee Pierhead Light. This replacement lantern remains atop the Pierhead Light today. The north 
pier’s two-light range was discontinued during the early 1930s and the rear range light’s skeletal tower was removed. The 
Pierhead Light continued in operation and was repainted to the red color which it remains today. The Pierhead Light’s 
fifth order Fresnel lens was later removed and replaced with the existing modern automated 300-millimeter acrylic optic. 
The present whereabouts of this fifth order Fresnel lens is unknown. The Milwaukee Pierhead Light’s original fourth order 
Fresnel lens, which was relocated to the Milwaukee Breakwater Light in 1926, is now on display at the Wisconsin 
Maritime Museum in Manitowoc, Wl.

Other changes in the lighthouse’s appearance and integrity have been limited to minor physical modifications and 
the installation of updated equipment. One change relating to the light’s automation was removal of the watch room stove 
and its exterior smoke stack. Another change is that electric power that was formerly supplied to the lighthouse through a 
cable from shore has been disconnected. Today, the automated lighthouse’s beacon is powered by batteries recharged 
by a solar array mounted on the lantern gallery.

The overall exterior and interior character of Milwaukee Pierhead Light remain largely unaltered from when the 
lighthouse’s existing decagonal lantern was installed in 1926. The changes that have occurred relate largely to the 
lighthouse’s foundation, day mark coloration, beacon, and power supply. The lighthouse’s location at the end of the north 
pier extending into Lake Michigan remains the same as during the property’s period of historical significance, even though 
the north pier itself has been rebuilt and the surrounding area has changed a great deal since the property’s period of 
significance.
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Appiicabie Nationai Register Criteria
(Mark “x" in one or more boxes for the criteria qualifying the property for 
National Register listing.)

B

Criteria Considerations
(Mark 'X* in all the boxes that apply.)

Property is:

Owned by a religious institution or used for religious 
A purposes.

B removed from its original location.

C a birthplace or grave.

D a cemetery.

E a reconstructed building, object, or structure.

F a commemorative property.

G less than 50 years old or achieving significance 
within the past 50 years.

(Expires 5/31/2012)

Milwaukee County, Wl
County and State

Areas of Significance
(Enter categories from instructions.)

Maritime History
Transportation

Property is associated with events that have made a 
significant contribution to the broad patterns of our 
history.

Property is associated with the lives of persons 
significant in our past.

Property embodies the distinctive characteristics 
of a type, period, or method of construction or represents 
the work of a master, or possesses high artistic vaiues, 
or represents a significant and distinguishabie entity 
whose components lack individual distinction.

Property has yielded, or is likely to yield, information 
important in prehistory or history.

Engineering

Period of Significance
1906 to 1966

Significant Dates 

1906

Significant Person
(Complete only if Criterion B is marked above.)

N/A

Cultural Affiliation
N/A

Architect/Buiider
Office of the Engineer, Ninth Lighthouse District, 
Milwaukee, Wisconsin

Period of Significance (justification)
The property’s period of significance begins with the establishment of Milwaukee Pierhead Light in 1906 and 
continues to 1966, the year the lighthouse’s beacon was automated and no longer maintained by a keeper.

Criteria Considerations (explanation, if necessary)
N/A
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Summary Paragraph

The Miiwaukee Pierhead Light has marked the north pier at the entry to Milwaukee harbor for more than a century 
and is significant in the local history of Milwaukee County. It embodies the maritime heritage of Wisconsin’s largest port 
while continuing to serve as an important guide for waterborne traffic. The property's period of historicai significance 
begins with its establishment as a Federal aid to navigation in 1906 and ends in 1966, the year the iighthouse was 
automated. This lighthouse is eligible for inclusion in the National Register under Criteria A and C. It is significant in 
terms of Criterion A for its association with the Federal government’s establishment of an integrated system of 
navigational aids throughout the United States. Milwaukee Pierhead Light exemplifies how this was manifested in the 
Miiwaukee County locaiity. This property is also significant under Criterion C because it represents and embodies eariy 
twentieth century iighthouse architecture and engineering. It exemplifies design, construction methods, and materials 
used in building steel lighthouses on piers at the entry to Great Lakes harbors during that time period. This structure 
possesses its original location, setting, and design, and embodies historical qualities of integrity in materials, 
workmanship, feeling and association. The character and appearance of Milwaukee Pierhead Light are largely 
unchanged from its period of significance. Its existing structural integrity attests to the lasting value of its design, as well 
as the high quality of materials and construction. Changes that have been made to the lighthouse include repainting the 
color of the light tower from light grey to buff to red, replacing the lighthouse’s original cylindrical lantern with a decagonal 
one in 1926, and replacing the lighthouse’s classical Fresnel lens optic with a modern automated beacon. Despite these 
changes, the lighthouse’s character and appearance remain essentially the same as during its period of significance. The 
Milwaukee Pierhead Light is a landmark associated with Milwaukee County’s maritime history. It continues to guide 
vessels navigating Wisconsin’s Lake Michigan waters, and evokes feelings recalling the dedication to duty that 
characterized United States lighthouse keepers throughout the country’s history.

Narrative Statement of Significance (Provide at least one paragraph for each area of significance.)

(see continuation sheets)

.1
Developmental history/additlonal historic context information (if appropriate) ' -w

"I
(see continuation sheets)

p
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Narrative Statement of Significance 

Significance under Criterion A

The Milwaukee Pierhead Light is eiigible for listing in the National Register of Historic Places (NRHP) under 
Criterion A for its iocal association with the broad historicai patterns of Great Lakes maritime transportation and 
commerce, as weii as the Federal government’s establishment of an integrated system of navigational aids throughout the 
United States. It exemplifies how the U.S. government’s long-term actions to promote maritime safety have been 
manifested in Wisconsin state waters and the Milwaukee locality. This lighthouse has been an important aid to navigation 
since the U.S. Light-House Board constructed it in 1906. Its beacon and day mark have enhanced maritime safety in and 
around Milwaukee for more than a century and enabled safe passage for thousands of ships. The Milwaukee Pierhead 
Light remains an operating lighthouse today and is widely recognized as a landmark in Milwaukee County.

Significance under Criterion C

This property also qualifies for the NRHP under Criterion C. It embodies and exemplifies distinctive architectural 
design and engineering aspects characteristic of steel lighthouses built on crib and pier foundations in the Great Lakes 
during the first decade of the twentieth century. This property’s good state of preservation reflects the durable and 
weather-resistant character of its materials and construction, as well as the lasting success of its design and 
appropriateness to this natural setting. The appearance and character of Milwaukee Pierhead Light remain essentially the 
same as during its period of historical significance, and it retains integrity in terms of location, setting, design, materials, 
workmanship, feeling, and association. Changes that have been made to the property have been limited and are largely 
reversible.

Additional Context Information and Developmental History

This NRHP registration form is submitted as an individual listing under the overarching Light Stations of the 
United States multiple property documentation form (MPDF). The specific historic contexts that apply are Establishment 
of the U.S. Light-House Board (1852-1910), Bureau of Lighthouses and the U.S. Lighthouse Service (1910-1939), and 
Lighthouses under the U.S. Coast Guard (1939-present). The property type sections of the MPDF relating to this 
registration are U.S. Lighthouse Construction Type - Non-Cast-Iron Tower (Steel), and Foundation Type - Crib 
Foundation. Information and historic contexts available in the Light Stations of the United States MPDF are not repeated 
here. This submission emphasizes facts and details supporting the historical significance of Milwaukee Pierhead Light as 
an individual property.

The property’s Great Lakes regional setting includes Lakes Ontario, Erie, Huron, Michigan and Superior, along 
with their connecting waters and the St. Lawrence River. This is one of the largest concentrations of fresh water on earth. 
It encompasses a waterway system having a total shore length of approximately 11,000 statute miles and a total water 
surface area of about 95,000 square miles. The property’s local setting is characterized by a combination of natural 
features conducive to the development of commercial activity and maritime trade. These features include the confluence 
of the Milwaukee River with Lake Michigan, which connects with the other Great Lakes. This provides access between 
Lake Michigan’s open waters and Milwaukee’s sheltered harbor where vessels can load and unload cargo and 
passengers. Milwaukee Harbor includes the lower Milwaukee River as well as two other connecting navigable waterways 
near its mouth, the Menomonee River and Kinnickinnic River. This area’s combination of ample habitable shorelines and 
waterborne transportation routes made it very favorable for the development of settlement and trade.
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During late prehistoric times, the Miiwaukee vicinity was inhabited by various American Indian groups inciuding 
members of the Menominee, Potawatomi, and Ho-Chunk Winnebago) tribes. Access to Lake Michigan and the area’s 
three rivers provided opportunities for native groups to converge by water transport and iand to meet and trade. The 
aboriginal name for this area, which is preserved in the place name “Milwaukee,” means “pleasant land” or “gathering 
place.” The vicinity’s traditional indigenous use and routes of access to interior lands also made it attractive to fur traders 
and missionaries from French Canada who engaged in exploration, missionary work, and commerce in the western Great 
Lakes during the seventeenth and eighteenth centuries.

Expansionist rivalry between the empires of France and Great Britain led to warfare during the 1760s that ended 
French colonial rule In Canada. Under British sovereignty, fur trading activity in the western Great Lakes region continued 
to grow over time. This included the 1785 establishment of the first trading post at Milwaukee by Alexis Laframboise. 
Shortly after this, the 1789 Treaty of Paris concluded the American Revolution. This treaty included transferring the 
Northwest Territory, which encompassed the Lake Michigan area, from British sovereignty to the United States of 
America. Even so, American settlement of the Milwaukee area did not begin to develop significantly until after the Treaty 
of Ghent In 1814 marked the end of the War of 1812. The conclusion of international warfare in the region led to lands in 
Wisconsin becoming available to settlers through treaties between the United States government and resident Native 
American groups.

The Great Lakes region’s historic context was generally characterized by limited settlement and commercial 
development until the second quarter of the nineteenth century. These aspects began to expand tremendously following 
completion of the Erie Canal in 1825. This important commercial waterway linked Lake Erie at Buffalo, New York, with the 
port of New York City via the Hudson River. Its opening marked the beginning of a period of enormous growth in 
population, commerce, and maritime traffic for the Great Lakes.

Another important man-made waterway, Canada’s Welland Canal, opened in 1829. It provided the means for 
vessels to navigate between Lake Ontario and Lake Erie. The St. Mary’s Falls Ship Canal (the Soo Locks) at Sault Sainte 
Marie, Michigan, opened in 1855. This provided for navigation between Lake Huron and Lake Superior, thus completing 
one of the last major links in the Great Lakes navigation system. With the opening of the St. Lawrence Seaway in 1959, 
Great Lakes navigation routes to the industrial and agricultural heartland of North America became accessible to deep- 
draft oceangoing vessels. In addition, barge and small craft traffic reaches the Great Lakes from the Gulf of Mexico via 
the Mississippi River and the Illinois Waterway, and also from the Hudson River by way of the New York State Barge 
Canal System.

Commerce grew rapidly in the Great Lakes region throughout the second half of the nineteenth century and into 
the twentieth century. The lumber industry accounted for a major part of the early development and expansion of marine 
traffic. Through time, development of iron ore production in Michigan’s Upper Peninsula, northern Wisconsin and 
Minnesota, as well as grain from farms and flour from mills in the Midwest and northern Great Plains, furnished cargoes 
carried aboard vessels bound for the lower Great Lakes. These shipments corresponded with the heavy up-bound 
movement of coal and manufactured goods from ports in the lower lakes. By 1910, the amount of goods shipped annually 
on the Great Lakes increased to 80 million tons. Most of this was bulk cargo. Shipped freight tonnage reached a record 
of 217 million tons in 1948. The combined movement of lumber, grain, flour. Iron ore and coal, together with limestone 
cargoes from the Lake Michigan area to centers of steel production, resulted In the greatest bulk freight marine commerce 
the world had ever seen.

The need for aids to navigation on the Great Lakes increased along with the expansion of shipping and 
settiement. Seven lighthouses were built in the region between 1818 and 1822, and 32 were completed during the 1830s. 
From 1841 to 1852, the U.S. Lighthouse Establishment added 33 new lights. Between 1852 and 1860, the total number 
of aids to navigation increased from 76 to 102. Another construction spurt occurred in the 1890s. By the beginning of the 
twentieth century, the Great Lakes had 334 major lighted aids, 67 fog signals, and 563 buoys.

12
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Several distinct designs or types of lighthouses emerged during the nineteenth century. Until circa 1870, the most 
common design consisted of a wood, stone, or brick keeper’s dwelling that exhibited the lighthouse's optic in a lantern on 
the roof or atop an attached square tower. By the 1870s, taller towers that were connected to a keeper’s dwelling by an 
enclosed passageway became popular. From 1870 to around 1910, lighthouse engineers practiced and perfected the 
construction of iight stations built on isolated islands and on crib structures placed atop submerged reefs and shoals.

Another widespread Great Lakes lighthouse type is the pierhead light, used for guiding vessels into harbors along 
the lake shores. In the region, pierhead lighthouses are most common on Lake Michigan. Such lights differ from East 
Coast lights that serve the same purpose in that they are constructed on piers that project from shore into the lakes, rather 
than being built on land. Nineteenth century and early twentieth century Great Lakes piers consisted of timber cribs that 
were floated into place and ballasted with rocks or concrete to sink them. A timber superstructure was then built above 
the water level, including a deck upon which pierhead lights were placed. These timber crib piers did not hold up well to 
harsh weather, ice, and fire hazards such as cinders from steamers and lightning. The older wooden piers were largely 
replaced by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers between 1916 and 1930 using concrete caisson piers surrounded with 
steei sheet piling.

Early Great Lakes pierhead lighthouses were constructed of wood, which was a readily available building 
material. This was generally suitable because these structures had to be strong to withstand constant buffeting from 
wind, waves and vibrations, but not of such great weight that they would overstress the wooden piers that supported 
them. These wooden lighthouses, however, were problematic to maintain in the harsh Great Lakes marine environment. 
Beginning in the middle 1850s, wooden pierhead lighthouses began to be replaced with light towers built of cast iron.
Metal construction was more suitable because it resisted deterioration and was inexpensive and water-tight. It was also 
lighter than brick or stone. Elevated walkways were also frequently built along the piers to provide for safe access to the 
lights. These were configured as catwalks that stood above the waves washing over the pier, as well as above the 
several feet of ice that accumulated during winter. As piers were extended through time, many pierhead lighthouses were 
picked up and moved with the extensions. Great Lakes breakwater lights are closely related to pierhead lights, and were 
usually positioned at the head of a breakwater. Both of these lighthouse varieties are usually tower-like structures 
constructed of metal plates.

Timber crib foundations were also used from the middle nineteenth century onwards in constructing offshore 
lights in the Great Lakes region. This involved assembling a rectangular crib on shore that was tall enough to reach the 
water’s surface at the lighthouse’s designated offshore site and included several open-top compartments. It was towed to 
the pre-determined offshore location and sunk using ballast at a position that had been previously leveled. Additional 
ballast and concrete were added to stabilize and strengthen the structure, and a concrete pier was built on top. This pier 
supported the lighthouse superstructure, which was normally surrounded by an open-air deck area. The pier usually 
included one or more interior rooms that served as the lighthouse’s basement. These interior spaces could be used as an 
engine room for motors powering electrical generators and air compressors, as well as for the lighthouse’s heating plant.

Offshore lighthouse superstructures in the Great Lakes also undenvent a process of design and technological 
development. The earlier ones were built of masonry using cut stone or brick. During the late nineteenth century, cast 
iron came into widespread use for U.S. lighthouses. These cast iron structures were commonly built from parts 
prefabricated to specification at a foundry and sent to the designated site as a kit for onsite assembly. The expansion of 
mass production steel mills in the United States from the early twentieth century onwards led to a decline in the cost of 
steel buildings. During the early 1900s, the cost versus benefit ratio for fabricating a structure using steel instead of cast 
iron led to steel’s adoption as the preferred building material for lighthouses. This led to the construction of several 
lighthouses with steel superstructures, including the 1906 Milwaukee Pierhead Light and the Milwaukee Breakwater Light 
built in 1926.
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Milwaukee Pierhead Light Historic Context

In 1818, pioneer developer Solomon Juneau established a frontier settlement named Juneau’s Side or Juneau 
Town on the east side of the Milwaukee River near its mouth. This attracted a number of settlers to the area, including 
one named Byron Kilbourn who established a second settlement named Kilbourntown on the river’s western shore. A 
third settlement was established a short distance south along the Milwaukee River’s west side in 1834 by George H. 
Walker. Its location came to be called Walker’s Point. The three neighboring communities grew over time, reaching a 
population of approximately 1,700 in 1840. They eventually merged and were incorporated as the City of Milwaukee in 
1846.

Milwaukee grew tremendously during the remainder of the nineteenth century, becoming Wisconsin’s principal 
commercial center. Important economic activities included processing and shipping agricultural products, manufacturing, 
brewing, insurance, and financial services. The cit/s population reached 285,000 in 1900. From then to 1930, the 
number of residents doubled to more than 578,000. Much of this increase included large numbers of German and Polish 
immigrants, along with other European nationalities.

Maritime trade was important to the early growth of Milwaukee and became an essential aspect of its economic 
expansion through time. The first commercial cargo vessel entered the port in 1835, and the number of vessels calling 
there increased steadily in the years that followed. While the Milwaukee River’s confluence with Lake Michigan provided 
access for vessels, its natural channel was curved instead of straight and there was a sand bar offshore of the river’s 
mouth. These factors restricted the size of vessels that could enter and depart.

Local commercial interests first petitioned the Federal government in 1843 for aid to improve navigation in the 
area. In 1852, the U.S. Congress finally approved an appropriation to fund such work. This led to a harbor improvement 
project directed by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) that began in 1857. It included excavating a channel 
connecting the Milwaukee River with Lake Michigan. This new channel, called the Straight Cut, was located one-half mile 
north of the Milwaukee River’s natural mouth. The work included construction of wooden piers on the north and south 
sides of the new channel to stabilize it. The U.S. Lighthouse Establishment built a lighthouse on the north pier’s offshore 
end in 1872 to mark the harbor entry for mariners. Designated the Milwaukee Pierhead Light, it was an official Federal aid 
to navigation maintained by a keeper. This lighthouse included a one-story skeletal tower supporting a second story 
enclosed service room that was topped with a lantern.

In 1881, Congress authorized the creation of a Harbor of Refuge at Milwaukee to provide for a protected offshore 
anchorage where vessels could shelter during inclement weather or while waiting to enter the port. This project included 
construction of a breakwater in Lake Michigan’s Milwaukee Bay that was to extend southward from a point approximately 
1.5 miles north-northeast of the Milwaukee Pierhead Light. The breakwater’s northern section was completed by 1896.
An additional section extending approximately one mile farther south was completed by 1904 with its southern terminus 
marked by an unmanned two-light (red above white) navigational aid. This signal was changed to a flashing red light by 
1912.

Other navigation improvement projects at Milwaukee during the late nineteenth century to early twentieth century 
included rebuilding and lengthening the north and south piers at the port’s entrance channel, and establishing a fog signal 
station near the head of the north pier. The original Milwaukee Pierhead Light was replaced in 1906 by a pair of range 
lights. This enabled mariners approaching the port to orient themselves with the entrance channel’s axis by setting their 
course so that the two range lights appeared to align vertically. The 1906 Milwaukee Pierhead Light was equipped with a 
fourth order Fresnel lens and was the range’s front light. The range’s rear light was located several hundred feet 
westward along the north pier. It included a skeletal tower topped with a beacon and was taller than the front light.
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Other improvements to Milwaukee Harbor were proposed to Congress during the early 1900s. They included a 
USAGE plan for additional breakwaters extending southward from the Harbor of Refuge. With these added structures, the 
completed overall Milwaukee breakwaters project would be approximately four miles long overall and include multiple 
entries to the port. Under this plan, the principal entry to Milwaukee Harbor was to be located directly east of the channel 
where the Milwaukee Pierhead Light was located. The proposed breakwater improvements project was approved by 
Congress in 1922. The first section built was a dogleg breakwater extending southeast from the original Harbor of 
Refuge. It terminated at the north side of the proposed principal entry. Work on the entr/s south side breakwater began 
later. The Milwaukee breakwaters project was finally completed in 1930 at a total cost of $6,250,000.

In 1910, Congress dissolved the U.S. Light-House Board and established the U.S. Bureau of Lighthouses to be 
responsible for the Federal system of navigational aids. One of the Bureau’s subsequent projects was to construct an 
offshore lighthouse at the southern end of Milwaukee Harbor’s new north breakwater to mark the principal entry to the port 
from Lake Michigan. The Bureau of Lighthouses decided to build this structure using a crib and pier foundation 
surmounted by a steel superstructure. The new lighthouse was built in 1926. Its construction included removing the 
cylindrical lantern and fourth order Fresnel lens from atop the 1906 Milwaukee Pierhead Light and installing them at the 
new lighthouse. In their place, a decagonal lantern and fifth order Fresnel lens were placed atop the Pierhead Light. In 
order to provide the new Milwaukee Breakwater Light with electricity, an underwater power cable was laid between it and 
the harbor entry’s north pier. When the Breakwater Light was officially established in 1926, its optic had a 61-foot focal 
plane and signaled a red flash that was visible for 14 miles in clear weather. This lighthouse was originally staffed with a 
resident crew of four keepers employed by the U.S. Lighthouse Service.

The Milwaukee Breakwater Light’s establishment caused the two-light range at the harbor entry to be become 
superfluous because approaching vessels could now use the new lighthouse to set their course. The range’s rear light on 
the north pier was discontinued and dismantled in 1926. The range’s front lighthouse (Milwaukee Pierhead Light) 
remained in operation to mark the north pier. It was repainted to a red tower with black lantern in the early 1930s.

After the Bureau of Lighthouses merged with the U.S. Coast Guard (USCG) in 1939, keepers assigned to 
Milwaukee’s lighthouses were USCG personnel. The Milwaukee Pierhead Light was maintained by the Breakwater 
Light’s resident keepers until 1966 when the Pierhead Light was automated. In 1994, the Breakwater Light's fourth order 
Fresnel lens was replaced with a modern beacon. This Fresnel lens (originally installed in the Milwaukee Pierhead Light 
in 1906) is currently on display at the Wisconsin Maritime Museum in Manitowoc, Wisconsin.

The Pierhead Light’s fifth order Fresnel lens optic was eventually replaced with a modem automated 300- 
millimeter acrylic beacon. This existing optic signals a red flash every four seconds and is visible for seven miles in clear 
weather. Electrical power is supplied to the lighthouse’s beacon by batteries that are recharged using a solar array 
mounted on the lantern gallery.

Today, the Milwaukee Pierhead Light remains standing in its original location atop the eastern end of the harbor 
entry’s north pier, and its basic structure, appearance, and setting remain essentially unchanged from its 1906 to 1966 
period of historical significance. This lighthouse property continues to fulfill its original role of aiding mariners by marking 
the port’s entry channel, and is widely recognized as a local landmark. It also serves as a lasting reminder of the City of 
Milwaukee’s historical role as one of Lake Michigan's most important commercial ports.
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Bibliography (Cite the books, articies, and other sources used in preparing this form.)

(see continuation sheet)

Previous documentation on file (NPS):
____preliminary determination of individual listing (36 CFR 67 has been

requested)
____previously listed in the National Register
____previously determined eligible by the National Register

^designated a National Historic Landmark 
recorded by Historic American Buildings Survey #

recorded by Historic American Engineering Record #. 
recorded by Historic American Landscape Survey # _

Primary location of additional data: 
X State Historic Preservation Office 

Other State agency
X Federal agency

___ Local government
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X Other
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UTM References
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Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing

Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing

Verbal Boundary Description (Describe the boundaries of the property.)

The lighthouse’s boundary is the exterior limit of its concrete slab foundation which sits atop the concrete deck of the 
Milwaukee Harbor entry north pier. The north pier’s boundary is the submerged perimeter of its base which rests upon 
state-owned submerged land.

Boundary Justification (Explain why the boundaries were selected.)

The property’s boundary encompasses the lighthouse and the north pier.
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Photographs

The following information is common to these photographs:

Name of Property: Milwaukee Pierhead Light
Location: Milwaukee County, Wisconsin
Photographer: Timothy McGrath
Date: September 2005
Location of original negative: U.S. Coast Guard Historian’s Office,

U.S. Coast Guard Headquarters, Washington, DC.

Photograph
Number Description

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

Lighthouse eastern elevation and setting, looking west from Milwaukee Breakwater Light. 

Lighthouse western elevation, looking east, with Milwaukee Breakwater Light in left background. 

Lighthouse southeastern elevation, looking northwest.

Lighthouse first story interior and stairway, looking east.

Lighthouse third story watch room and ladder to lantern, looking southwest.

Lantern room interior and modern optic, looking north.
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U.S. Department of 
Homeland Security

United States y
Coast Guard mi

Commandant
United States Coast Guard

2100 Second Street SW - STOP 7901 
Washington, DC 20593-7901 
Staff Symboi: COMDT (CG-47) 
Phone: (202) 475-5687 
Fax: (202) 475-5949

16475

Honorable Tom Barrett, Mayor 
Office of the Mayor 
Milwaukee City Hall 
200 E. Wells Street, Room 201 
MUwaukee, WI53203

SUBJECT: NATIONAL REGISTER NOMINATION FOR MILWAUKEE PIERHEAD 
LIGHT

Dear Mr. Barrett:

The U. S. Coast Guard (USCG) has determined that Milwaukee Pierhead Light in Milwaukee 
County, Wisconsin, is a historic property eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic 
Places (NRHP). We are proposing to nominate this lighthouse for official inclusion in the 
NRHP. A smnmary of the NRHP nomination is enclosed for your information (enclosure (1)). 
This action is being performed pursuant to the authorities contained in Section 110 of the 
National Historic Preservation Act, the National Historic Lighthouse Preservation Act, and the 
National Park Service regulations at 36 Code of Federal Regulations Part 60.9.
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As part of the nomination process, the USCG is seeking your comments. Please provide any 
comments within 45 days from the date your office receives this letter. If we receive no response 
from your office within 45 days, we will assume you have no comments. We have also 
submitted the NRHP nomination form for Milwaukee Pierhead Light to the Wisconsin State 
Historic Preservation Officer for review and comment.

Thank you in advance for your assistance in this matter. If you have any questions or desire 
additional information, please feel free to contact Dr. Daniel Koski-Karell at (202) 475-5683.

E. F. W. 
Chief
Office of Environmental Management 
U. S. Coast Guard

Enclosure: (1) Summary of NRHP nomination for Milwaukee Pierhead Light

Copy (w/o enclosure): J. Paul Loether, National Park Service
COMDT (CG-0942)
CG SILC
CG CEU Cleveland 
CG D9 (DPW)
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16475

Honorable Marina Dimitrijevic, Chairwoman 
Milwaukee County Board of Supervisors 
Milwaukee County Courthouse 
901 North 9‘^ Street, RM 201 
Milwaukee, WI53233

SUBJECT: NATIONAL REGISTER NOMINATION FOR MILWAUKEE BREAKWATER 
LIGHT

Dear Ms. Dimitrijevic:

The U. S. Coast Guard (USCG) has determined that the Milwaukee Breakwater Light in 
Milwaukee Coimty, Wisconsin, is a historic property eligible for listing in the National Register 
of Historic Places (NRHP). We are proposing to nominate this lighthouse for official inclusion 
in the NRHP. A summary of the NRHP nomination is enclosed for your information (enclosure 
(1)). This action is being performed pursuant to the authorities contained in Section 110 of the 
National Historic Preservation Act, the National Historic Lighthouse Preservation Act, and the 
National Park Service regulations at 36 Code of Federal Regulations Part 60.9.

As part of the nomination process, the USCG is seeking your comments. Please provide any 
comments within 45 days from the date your office receives this letter. If we receive no response 
from your office within 45 days, we will assume you have no comments. We have also 
submitted the NRHP nomination form for Milwaukee Breakwater Light to the Wisconsin State 
Historic Preservation Officer for review and comments.

Thank you in advance for your assistance in this matter. If you have any questions or desire 
additional information, please feel free to contact Dr. Daniel Koski-Karell at (202) 475-5683.

E. F. WANDELT 
Chief
Office of Environmental Management 
U. S. Coast Guard

Enclosure: (1) Summary of NRHP nomination for Milwaukee Breakwater Light

Copy (w/o enclosmre): J. Paul Loether, National Park Service
COMDT (CG-0942)
CGSILC
CG CEU Cleveland 
CGD9(DPW)
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Honorable Jon Greendeer, President 
Ho-Chimk Nation Tribal Office Building 
W9814 Airport Road 
Black River Falls, WI54615

SUBJECT: NATIONAL REGISTER NOMINATION FOR MILWAUKEE PIERHEAD 
LIGHT

Dear Mr. Greendeer:

The U. S. Coast Guard (USCG) has determined that Milwaukee Pierhead Light in Milwaukee 
Coimty, Wisconsin, is a historic property eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic 
Places (NRHP). We are proposing to nominate this lighthouse for official inclusion in the 
NRHP. A summary of the NRHP nomination is enclosed for your information (enclosure (1)). 
This action is being performed pursuant to the authorities contained in Section 110 of the 
National Historic Preservation Act, the National Historic Lighthouse Preservation Act, and the 
National Park Service regulations at 36 Code of Federal Regulations Part 60.9.

As part of the nomination process, the USCG is seeking your comments. Please provide any 
comments within 45 days from the date your office receives this letter. If we receive no response 
from your office within 45 days, we will assume you have no comments. We have also 
submitted the NRHP nomination form for Milwaukee Pierhead Light to the Wisconsin State 
Historic Preservation Officer for review and comment.

Thank you in advance for your assistance in this matter. If you have any questions or desire 
additional information, please feel free to contact Dr. Daniel Koski-Karell at (202) 475-5683.

E. F. W;
Chief
Office of Environmental Management 
U. S. Coast Guard

Enclosure: (1) Summary of NRHP nomination for Milwaukee Pierhead Light

Copy (w/o enclosure): J. Paul Loether, National Park Service
COMDT (CG-0942)
CG SILC
CGCEU Cleveland 
CG D9 (DPW)



National Register of Historic Places Nomination 
Milwaukee Pierhead Light 

Milwaukee County, Wisconsin

Milwaukee Pierhead Light is located on the north pier at the mouth of the Milwaukee River in the City of 
Milwaukee, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin. It is an operating aid to navigation owned by the U.S. Coast 
Guard (USCG), identified as number 20670 on the regional Light List. This property stands atop the 
offshore end of the north pier and is accessible on foot.

This property was officially established as a Federal lighthouse in 1906. Based on its historic character, 
the USCG intends to nominate this property for listing in the National Register of Historic Places 
(NRHP).

The National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended (NHPA) (16 United States Code 470 et seq.) 
authorizes the Secretary of the Interior to expand and maintain a national register of districts, sites, 
buildings, structures, and objects significant in American history, architecture, archaeology, engineering, 
and culture. Federal agencies are charged with identifying, evaluating, and nominating such properties 
under their control to the NRHP. The National Historic Lighthouse Preservation Act of 2000 (Public Law 
106-355) amended the NHPA for the purpose of establishing a National Historic Lighthouse Preservation 
Program.

The USCG has prepared a NRHP registration form for Milwaukee Pierhead Light. It has been sent to the 
Wisconsin State Historic Preservation Officer for review and comment concerning the USCG position 
that the property is eligible for listing in the NRHP. Phirsuant to implementing regulation 36 Code of 
Federal Regulations 60.9, we are notifying local elected officials who may have an interest in the property 
and inviting them to comment on the nomination during the 45-day comment period. The property is 
described below.

Site Name and Location:

■ Milwaukee Pierhead Light
■ Located at the southeast comer of Henry W. Maier Festival Park, this lighthouse stands 

atop the offshore end of the north pier at the mouth of the Milwaukee River in the City of 
Milwaukee in Milwaukee County, WI

■ Light List Number 20670

Owner;
■ U.S. Coast Guard COMDT (CG-47)

ATTN: Dr. Daniel Koski-Karell 
2100 Second Street SW - STOP 7901 
Washington, DC 20593-7901

Summary Description:

Milwaukee Pierhead Light is a conical steel lighthouse atop a pier navigation stmcture that is owned by 
the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. It is approximately 42 feet tall from the base of its foundation to the 
top of its lantern. This property includes a rectangular concrete slab foundation that supports a slightly 
tapering conical tower that supports a lantern and lantern gallery. This lighthouse is painted red except 
for the lantern and lantern gallery that are painted black. The lantern is equipped with a modem
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automated beacon that has a focal plane 45 feet above water level. It signals a flashing red light that is 
visible for seven miles in clear weather.

Milwaukee Pierhead Light includes a single entrance on its western side at the base. Inside, the tower 
includes three stories connected with a spiral stairway. A ladder leads up from the third story watch room 
to the interior of the lantern. A low doorway in the lantern provides access to the outdoor lantern gallery.

Summary Statement of Historical Significance:

This lighthouse was constructed in 1906 atop the north pier at the mouth of the Milwaukee River. It was 
built to mark the north pier’s offshore end and to serve as the front light of a two-light range showing the 
proper orientation for a vessel seeking to enter Milwaukee Harbor. Milwaukee Pierhead Light was 
operated by resident keepers associated with the U.S. Lighthouse Service until 1939 when the U.S.
Bureau of Lighthouses merged with the U.S. Coast Guard (USCG). After that, it was staffed by USCG 
personnel until the lighthouse was automated in 1966.

This lighthouse property is significant in the history of Milwaukee County. It is eligible for National 
Register of Historic Places listing under Criterion A for its association with the historic Federal 
government program to establish a nationwide system of aids to navigation in order to promote maritime 
safety and commerce. Milwaukee Pierhead Light exemplifies how this program was manifested in the 
Milwaukee County area. This property is also eligible of NRHP listing under Criterion C for its 
architectural and engineering significance. It exemplifies how characteristics of early twentieth century 
lighthouse architecture and engineering were applied to the need to mark the entry to the port of 
Milwaukee. The qualities of this structure’s design, materials, and construction methods were applied to 
overcome difficulties relating to building a lighthouse atop a pier navigation structure in an area subject to 
adverse environmental conditions. Milwaukee Pierhead Light retains substantial integrity in terms of 
location, setting, design, materials, and workmanship. It is a well-known landmark in the Milwaukee 
area.

Map and Photograph:

■ Milwaukee Pierhead Light location map

■ Milwaukee Pierhead Light, view looking east from shore







INIihvaukee Office of the City Clerk

September 19,2012

Jim Owczarski
Ctfv C^fk

Rtittecca N. Grtti
Dspi^ City CMrk

Daniel Koski-Karell, Ph.D 
United States Coast Guaid (COMDT CG-47) 
2100 Second Street SW STOP 7901 
Washington, EX: 20593-7901

Dear Mr. Koski-Karell:

RE: CLG Review of the National Register Nomination Milwaukee Pierhead Light

In accordance with the provisions of the Certified Local Government Agreement between the City of 
Milwaukee and Wisconsin State Historic Preservation Office, the Milwaukee Historic Preservation 
Commission has reviewed the National Register nomination of the Milwaukee Pierhead Light. The 
Commission determined that the building met the Statement of Significance as outlined in the application 
and voted to support the nomination on September 11,2012.

In supporting this nomination the commission feels that Milwaukee’s maritime heritage is an often 
forgotten part of Milwaukee’s history and it is important to call out buildings and structures of significance 
along our harbor and lakefront. Efforts should be taken to preserve these unique symbols of government 
investment in the security, commercial vitality and recreation of Milwaukee as well as other coastal 
communities. Light stations have a mystique all their own; they are very different from the landlocked 
structures and buildings that residents encounter every day. Their preservation is all the more important as 
technology has rendered many of these stations obsolete. The National Register listing for this property, 
long a visual landmark on Milwaukee’s lakefront and a popular subject among local photographers, will 
enable its preservation for future generations If you need additional information or have any questions 
please feel free to contact the Historic Preservation Commission staff at (414) 286-5722.
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U.S. Department of 
Homeland Security

United States 
Coast Guard
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OCT 0 5 2012
1 staff Symbol: COMDT (CG-47) 
Phone: (202) 475-5687 

(202) 475-5949

■register OF HlSiOPlC 
fJATIOhlAL PARK SERVICE

andelt, Cnief 
COMDT (CG-47)

OCT 0 4 2012

Reply to Dr. Daniel Koski-Karell 
Attn of: (202) 475-5683

To: Mr. J. Paul Loether, Chief 
National Register of Historic Places and Historic Landmarks Division 
National Park Service 
1849 C Street NW, Mail Stop 2280 
Washington, DC 20240

Subj: MILWAUKEE PIERHEAD LIGHT, MILWAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN

Ref: (a) National Historic Preservation Act Section 110, 16 U.S.C. 470h-2
(b) Programmatic Agreement Regarding Outgranting of Historic Lighthouse Properties

1. The Coast Guard nominates Milwaukee Pierhead Light in Milwaukee County, WI, for listing 
in the National Register of Historic Places (NRHP). The nomination package is enclosed 
(Enclosure (1)).

2. The Wisconsin State Historic Preservation Officer's comments on this NRHP nomination 
were requested and received. They have been incorporated into this property's NRHP registration 
form where deemed appropriate.

3. Comments from appropriate local officials were solicited and none was received. Copies of 
this correspondence are included in the enclosure.

Enclosure: (1) NRHP nomination package for Milwaukee Pierhead Light

Copy: CG SILC (with end)
CG CEU Cleveland (with end)
CG D9(DPW) (with end)


